ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 21, 2002
1:15 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Vic Kohring, Chair

Representati ve Beverly Masek, Vice Chair

Representative Scott Ogan
Represent ati ve Drew Scal zi
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Al bert Kookesh

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 397

"An Act
| i censing requirenments.”

exenpting a person driving a snowrbile

from driver

- MOVED CSHB 397(TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 397
SHORT TI TLE: SNOWMOBI LE DRI VERS'

SPONSOR( S): TRANSPORTATI ON
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page

02/ 08/ 02 2183 (H
02/ 08/ 02 2183 (H
02/ 21/ 02 (H)

W TNESS REG STER

M KE KRI EBER, St aff

to Representative Vic Kohring
Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 24
Juneau, Al aska 99801

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1-

LI CENSI NG EXEMPTI ON

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
TRA, STA
TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

February 21, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As conmttee aide, presented HB 397 on
behal f of the House Transportation Standing Committee sponsor.

JI M JANSEN ( ph)

(No address provi ded)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 397.

NANCY HI LLSTRAND

(No address provided)

Honer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 397 and said that it could
be used to educate youth on safety.

JACK CAMPBELL, WMat-Su Motor Mushers

1830 East Par ks Hi ghway

Wasil | a, Al aska 99654

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 397.

ROBERT WEBER

P. 0. Box 873244

Wasil | a, Alaska 99687

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 397 saying that
snowmrachi nes and cars do not m X.

NANCY VEEBB, Assenbly Menber

Fai r banks Nort hstar Borough

P. 0. Box 71267

Fai r banks, Al aska 99707

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 397, expressing her wish to
curb sone of the behavior of the few snowrachine users who are
ruining it for the many.

MARK MEW Deputy Chi ef

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

4501 Sout h Bragaw Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 397 on behalf of the
Anchorage Police Departnent, saying that he did not want the
wrong nessage to be sent by the bill

STAN JUSTI CE

1750 Reed Circle
Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- February 21, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 397 that sonething nust be
done to reduce the nunber of deaths and injuries from
snowrachi nes.

ROGER BURNS

2559 Dal e Road

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 397.

PAT CARLSON

(No address provi ded)

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 397.

MARY MARSHBURN, Director

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration

3300B Fai rbanks Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 397 on behalf of the DW.

MARK W LKE, Treasurer

Juneau Snowmobil e C ub

4300 University Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of safety education
and HB 397.

JI M STRATTON, Director

Di vi si on of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation

Departnent of Natural Resources

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1380

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3561

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent on HB
397, saying he had no problem with the original bill but had
sone reservations about Version C

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-3, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAIR VIC KOHRING called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:15 p.m Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Ogan, Scalzi, WIson,
Kapsner, Masek, and Kohri ng. Representati ve Kookesh joined the
neeting as it was in progress.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- February 21, 2002



HB 397- SNOWOBI LE DRI VERS' LI CENSI NG EXEMPTI ON

CHAIR KOHRING said that the matter before the commttee was
HOUSE BILL NO 397, "An Act exenpting a person driving a

snowmobile from driver licensing requirenents.” He said the
bill was the result of the "discovery" of a licensing
requi renent that many people did not know about. He said that

he did not feel that it is a necessary governnent function to
require a driver's license to operate a snowrachi ne, especially
in rural areas of the state.

Number 030

M KE KRI EBER, Staff to Representative Vic Kohring, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, presented HB 397 on behalf of the House
Transportation Standing Comrttee, sponsor. He said the
Department of Transportation [and Public Facilities] (DOT&PF)
presented its draft version of the "Wnter Transportation Study"
in the previous year. The study was concerned with the off-road
uses of vehicles - primarily snowrachi nes. M. Krieber said it
was begun as a mcro-study, focused on the Fairbanks area, and
dealt primarily wth snowrachi ne use. The study quickly
expanded to a statew de scope.

MR. KRIEBER told the committee that the study found nany people
were not well apprised of the law on the topic. The study
states that snowrachi ne operators are required to have a vehicle
driver's license to operate on roadways, as well as any public
properties, including | ands and waters.

MR. KRIEBER said that there was additional testinony heard in
the previous year for other bills relating to airplane safety
equi pnent . It becane evident that operation of an airplane
requires a driver's license in addition to a pilot's license.
M. Krieber nade reference to a recent headline story in the
Anchorage Daily News that said a person needs a driver's |icense

to drive a snowmachi ne. M. Krieber said these revelations
showed a large nunber of people in the state was not legally
able to operate snowrachi nes. He gave the exanples of persons

under the age of 16 and rural residents who do not drive cars or
have Department of Mdtor Vehicles (DW) offices at hand,
characterizing both groups as ones that will be affected.

MR. KRIEBER said the bill was filed as a snowrachine driver's
| i cense exenption. He said the original bill adds one Iline

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 21, 2002



i ncluding snowrachines in the statute that lists exenptions to
driver's license requirenents.

Nunber 075

MR. KRI EBER sai d the exenption does not address the other issues
such as the use of ATVs, airplanes, and boats. He said if an
exenption is not listed, then it is a requirenent. He gave the

exanples of notorized wheelchairs and the IT [a new form of
notorized, personal transportation] that would not be exenpted
from the driver's license requirenent. He said instead of
listing all of the exenptions, a proposed conmttee substitute
(CS) was submtted for the conmttee' s consideration.

MR. KRI EBER said the proposed CS would elimnate the need for a
driver's license for any type of notor vehicle that would be
operated on any area other than a highway. He alluded to the
definition of "highway" in AS 28.40. 100, which reads:

(11) "highway" neans the entire width between the boundary
lines of every way that is publicly maintained when a part
of it is open to the public for purposes of vehicular

travel, including but not limted to every street and the
Al aska state marine highway system but not vehicular ways
or areas;

He said if the conmttee wi shed to change the word "hi ghway" to

"roadway" - the road surface - he had an anmendnent prepared that
woul d allow the use of off-road vehicles alongside the highway
wi thout a driver's |icense. He clarified that the current |aw

prevents the use of [notorized vehicles] alongside the road
Wi thin right-of-way boundaries without a driver's |icense.

Nunmber 113
REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noved to adopt the proposed CS, version 22-

LS1448\C, Ford, 2/12/02, as the working docunent. There being
no objection, Version C was before the committee.

Nunmber 118

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON noved to adopt the aforenentioned
anendnent [amendnent 1], changing the word "highway" to
"roadway" on page 1, line 5, of Version C.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 21, 2002



CHAI R KOHRI NG said he understood the intent behind the amendnent
was to allow "vehicular use along roadways w thout requiring a
| i cense. ™

Nunmber 125

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked if there were any objections to the adopting
t he anendnent. There being none, [Anendnent 1] to Version C was
adopt ed.

Nunmber 135

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI nentioned watercraft, other ATVs, and
aircraft. He asked if those vehicles would be included under
the driver's |license requirenents.

MR. KRIEBER said they would be included in the definition of
"notor vehicles." He added that the way Version C is drafted
with the amendnent, to operate any type of notor vehicle off of
the road surface would not require a driver's |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked if there would be any age limt
[inposed on the use of a notorized vehicle]. He expressed
concern that parents should not allow very young children to use
danger ous nachi nery.

Number 170

CHAIR KOHRI NG said that he was going to bring that issue before
the commttee. He said it was his personal opinion that it
should be a matter of parental guidance and control, but he
added that the commttee could address an age |imt in the bil
if it so w shed.

Nunber 173

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what the bill would cover. She said
in her area, the town has no nore than 12 mles of road. Beyond
the 12 mles of road there are |ogging roads. She asked if
children under the age of 16 would need to have their parents
drive them out to these |ogging roads and pick them up in order
for themto use their off-road vehicles under the | egislation.

MR. KRIEBER said that if they were public lands, the |legislation
would lift the driver's license requirenent alongside the
roadway. |If vehicles were to be operated on the road surface, a
driver's license would be required.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- February 21, 2002



Number 193

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said that until there are |arge anounts
of public conplaint about underage drivers on the road, it is
"not a problenmt and it need not be discussed. He said, "Nobody
has conpl ai ned yet."

Number 200

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said Al aska has many famlies that |ive an
outdoor lifestyle. She said a great deal of parents take tine
to teach their children the proper use of machinery. She said
she knew many children that were better at handling sone of the
vehi cl es nmentioned than a nunber of adults. She said that the
use of [snownachines and ATVs] is a tradition in the state, and
that parents should be given the responsibility to make the
deci sion of when their children are old enough to operate them
She concurred with Representative Kookesh's assertion that since
there has not been an outcry from the public on the matter, it
is not a large problem

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH posited that snowrachi nes and ATVs can be
as expensive as [cars]. He said that parents are very careful
to make sure that such an expensive investnent is not m sused.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said that his son once had an off-road
notorcycle and he did not "think for a mnute that he wasn't
crazy with it." He said he was not naive enough to think that
all kids are using equi pnment in a responsible manner.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that the bill should have a negative
fiscal note due to the fact that a "roving DW' would be very
expensi ve.

Number 266

JIM JANSEN (ph) testified via tel econference. He said that his
20-year-old son has epilepsy and is not able to get a driver's
| i cense. H's son's favorite recreation is riding snowrachi nes
with his famly. M. Jansen said that he and his famly usually
ride in the nountains off of the road and rarely even see
ot hers. He said he could not see how licensing would provide
any nore safety in his son's case. He said he did not think it
right to require his son to be an outlaw in order to enjoy his
favorite pastine. M. Jansen said he believes snowrachine
riding is a great fam |y outdoor activity and a great sport.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 21, 2002



Number 300

NANCY HI LLSTRAND testified via teleconference. She said that
she was |ooking at the issue as one of safety. She said the
bill was sonething that could be transforned into an educationa
opportunity. Ms. Hillstrand told of an accident she endured
because of "two kids on a snownpbile that were going probably at
| east 80 mles an hour." She said they are lucky to be alive
because she "coul d have easily creanmed them"

M5. HI LLSTRAND said this is a comobn occurrence because people
cone fromthe sides of the road, out onto the road in order get
to the other side or because it is faster on the side of the
road. She agreed that parents should be responsible, but asked
if that was always the case. She proposed a certificate system
tied in with education about safety, trespassing, and vandalism

I ssues. She gave exanples of stories in the Anchorage Daily
News where snowrachi nes were involved in m shaps. She said the
bill could be used for "sonething good" [such as education]

instead of "just a fuzzy feeling”" of providing a recreational
opportunity to the people. She said the bill should be used as
an opportunity and "a tool."

Nunmber 341

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK referred to a bill recently passed that
required the collection of a fee wupon the registration of
snowrachi nes. The nonies go to the Departnment of Natural

Resources and are then disbursed as grants to individuals,
groups, and nonprofit agencies in order to mark and groomtrails
and to provide education. She said a group in the Mtanuska -
Susitna area put on a four-hour safety course and sold hel nets
for $25. She said that great strides are being made with regard
to the issue of safety education in the nmany facets of
snowrachi ni ng.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said that Version C is not a safety bill
but rather a question of "who is legal and who isn't."

Number 388

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that she saw two different classes
of snowmachi ne users in the state. She said many users in urban

Al aska wuse snowmachines for sport. She said nost rural
snowrachine wusers utilize them for transportation and in
hunti ng. Representative Kapsner pointed out that many

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- February 21, 2002



muni cipalities have codes for ATVs and how they are to be used
on roads. She advised Nancy Hillstrand to talk wth her
assenbl ynen about snownachines on the road. She said that a
st atewi de approach m ght not be a w se approach because of the
di ffering kinds of use.

Nunber 405

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said snowrachine use in the right-of-way
is illegal by Gty of Honer Gty Kenai Peninsula Borough
or di nance. He said that whether the riders of the snowrachi ne
are above or below 16, riding on the road is illegal.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER added that the school district could also
be a good conduit of information as to what is legal and what is
illegal with regard to snownachi ne and ATV use.

Nunber 429

JACK CAMPBELL, Mat - Su Mot or Musher s, testified Vi a
t el econf erence. He said the existing law is "extrenely
i napplicable" to off-road vehicles and that it was also
unenf or ceabl e. He said there is room for inprovenent in the
area of safety for off-road vehicle operation. He said the
existing law will cause a great reduction in famly recreation

if enforced. He supported the bill
Number 441

ROBERT WEBER testified via teleconference that, "Snownachines
and cars don't mx." Crossing roadways and driveways requires a
driver's license under existing |aw He said under the bill
roadways and driveways mnust be crossed - "which constitutes a
driver's license."

MR. VEEBBER asked, "Wat constitutes an off-road vehicle?" He
asked if he could drive his four-wheel-drive truck down the side

of the road without a driver's license under the new bill. He
said the state differentiates between urban and rural areas
regardi ng auto insurance. He asked why the sanme could not be
done for "snowrachines and the requirenents there." He
suggested tying a driver's license requirenment to where
autonobil e insurance is required. [He referred to 13 AAC

02. 487. DRI VING ON SIDEWALK, and 13 AAC 02.430. APPLICABILITY
OF REGULATI ONS; PARENTAL RESPONSIBILITY, subsection (b).] He
sai d snowrachi nes and cars need to be kept separate.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- February 21, 2002



Nunber 464

CHAIR KOHRING said it was brought to his attention that there
are existing regulations that permt snowrachines and off-road
vehicl es to cross roads and hi ghways.

MR KRIEBER <cited 13 AAC 02.455 and said it addresses
snowrachi ne use and special rules for off-highway vehicles. He
said the particular regulation is entitled "OPERATION ON
H GAVWAYS AND OTHER LOCATI ONS". He said there are details of
where crossings can be nmade. M. Krieber surmsed that
crossi ngs of roadways are allowed for off-road vehicles.

Number 476

NANCY WEBB, Assenbly Menber, Fairbanks Norhthstar Borough

testified via teleconference. She said there is a high |evel of
concern in the Fairbanks area, and she said that concern was
part of the reason the "Wnter Transportation Study"” originated
t here. She said she could wunderstand how the |I|icense
requi renent would seem absurd to rural residents, but she said
she had concerns about unsupervised children using high-speed
notor vehicles. She said it is a risk to people other than just
the children thenselves such as trail users. Ms. Webb said
people are beginning to resent snowrachine use because of
youth's "dangerous antics," trespassing through vyards, and
"becom ng a trenendous annoyance." Ms. Webb said she only
thought that it was a few, giving a bad nane to the nany
snowrachi ne riders who are al so her constituents.

M5. WEBB asked that the legislature "add sone tool" to their
removal of the license requirenent that would send a nessage to
the children who are causing the problem and their parents.
She proposed confiscating a vehicle wuntil the end of "the
season."” She also offered that it nmay be necessary to forfeit
vehi cl es after repeated offenses.

Number 511

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what was prohibiting the Fairbanks
assenbly from addressing the issue at the | ocal |evel.

M5. WEBB said that she was told by the troopers that boroughw de
standards would have to be in place to inplenment her penalties
for infraction. She said that the legislature would have to
gi ve the borough authority to enforce a boroughw de standard.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 21, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that she could synpathize with M.
Webb's concerns but added that in rural Al aska, children becone
adults very quickly. She said life in rural Alaska is like that
on many farnms where children nmust help wth the work of daily
life and that this work often requires the use of snownrachines
and |ike vehicles. She said that young people in rural Al aska
shoul d not be penalized for "a few people in urban Al aska."

M5. WEBB said that there are responsible youth riders [in the
Fai rbanks area], and that only a few people are causing trouble.

Nunmber 532

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH said M. Wbb's concerns sound Iike
another matter than the one being addressed by the bill. He
said that he was for a legislative process that would give
municipalities the power to act, but not in this |egislation.

Nunber 542

MARK MEW Deputy Chi ef Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent,
Municipality of Anchorage, testified via teleconference. He
said the issue sounds |like nore of a rural issue than an urban
i ssue. Anchorage has a |local ordinance that prevents the

operation of snowmachines and other off-road vehicles on roads.
He said that the Anchorage Police Departnment can already inpound
the machines and cite users for offenses other than driving
wi thout a |icense.

MR. MEW said he understands the situation in rural Alaska is
different from the one in Anchorage, but he expressed his
concern about nmaking a statenment that it is all right for
children to operate this type of equipment with no further
gui dance or control. He said that he would not bank on parental
gui dance to keep children safe when they are riding a vehicle
capabl e of speeds in excess of 80 mles per hour. He said the
i ssue should be | ooked at beyond just the scope of snowmrachi nes,
and he asked that all recreational vehicles be considered. He
suggested sonething akin to a hunter safety course that would
give them proper safety training. He said there will be tragic
results if "we just throw open the doors on this issue.”

Nunber 577

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH poi nted out that there are 85 comunities
in rural Alaska wthout any form of |aw enforcenent. He said

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 21, 2002



there should be a statew de police presence before there is talk
of statew de enforcenent issues.

Nunmber 594
TAPE 02-3, SIDE B

STAN JUSTICE testified via teleconference. He said he had
recently helped in recovering the bodies of a 13-year-old girl
and her father after they had been killed by a collapsing
cornice above Sunmt Lake. He said HB 397 is "a sinple fix to a
conplex problem and it may nmake matters nmuch worse.” The [ ast
six years have seen a dramatic rise in the rate of snowmachine
accidents. He said that the rate of snowrachi ne deat hs has gone
up from 13 in 1996, to 32 |ast year. Injuries are on the rise
as well.

MR, JUSTICE said that there are snownachines in many areas of
Fai r banks. He said that many snowrachine drivers have | ost
their driver's licenses for drinking and driving. They drive
their snowrachi nes because they know there is no enforcenent.
He said three of l|ast year's snowrachine deaths were children
| ess than 15 years of age.

MR. JUSTICE called for strong snowrachine |aws such as age
limts, speed limts, restrictions on where they can go, a way
to identify both nmachine and rider, as well as a police force

capable of enforcing those | aws. He said if the Bush does not
want such laws, that the legislature should wite exenptions
like the |license plate exenption. M. Justice asked the

commttee to go back to the drawng board and wite
conpr ehensi ve snowrachi ne | egi sl ation. He characterized HB 397
as "throwing the baby out with the bathwater." He said to
renmove the age |imt in the face of such high death and acci dent
rates was irresponsi bl e.

Nunmber 567

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked M. Justice if he believed no one
under 16 should be able to operate a snowrachi ne.

MR. JUSTICE said that he thought the |egislature should consider
what to do about the situation.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked what percentage of the nunber of

deaths M. Justice had nentioned earlier were children under the
age of 16.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- February 21, 2002



MR. JUSTICE said that he only had the figure of the three under
the age of 15 but was not sure of the others.

Nunber 552

ROGER BURNS testified via tel econference. He characterized the
bill as a good thing and added that the amendnents clean it up a
great deal. This bill would "restore the status quo." He
agreed that there are a |lot of snowrachine related probl ens that
need to be addressed, but he said this bill is not the place to
do it. The bill does not close the door on future |egislation

He characterized the bill as a "necessary first step” so that

snowmobi l ers, airplane pilots, and wheelchair operators are not
turned into outlaws. He gave his support to the bill

Nunber 526

PAT CARLSON testified via teleconference. He said that
snowrachines in Kodiak were not as nuch a problem as four-
wheel ers. He said this bill would be good in concert with the
| egislature's giving nunicipalities the abilities to |icense,
control, and register these vehicles through the ordinance
process. He said that there are different situations in both
rural and urban Al aska, and that these areas should have the
flexibility to deal with their wunique problens. He said he
would i ke to participate in the bill's noving forward.

Nunber 507

MARY MARSHBURN, Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Departnent of Adm nistration, testified via teleconference. She
said there is a law on the books requiring a driver's |icense
for all of the off-road vehicles that had been nentioned, but
she added that there had not been any overt action on behalf of
the division or the state to require a driver's Ilicense. She
said that the | aw has evol ved over the past 30 years, and today
there is a "circunstance” on the books wthout the state's
having acted to bring it about.

M5. MARSHBURN said that the division recognizes an "off-road
vehicl e uniqueness” for Alaska; off-road vehicles form a
necessary part of everyday life in a large portion of the state.
She said that in nuch of the state, "there is no public safety;

there is no DW, even wth a licensing requirenent.” She said
that her division is also mandated to be concerned about the
safety of the driving public. Speaking to that, the bill, and

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- February 21, 2002



the proposed CS, she said there is a classification for vehicles
that are defined as off-road vehicles. She said that the
equi pnent is different from that of "traditional road vehicles”
and that they do not neet federal standards for road vehicles.
The off-road vehicles are not permtted to travel roads except
in special circunstances - nost of themrelated to crossing the
road. She said local jurisdictions can, and do, allow off-road
vehicles to travel on the roads of that jurisdiction. That
provision leaves it to the nunicipality to determ ne what to do.

M5. MARSHBURN said that once a vehicle enters the roadway it

must conply with the rules of the road. The operator can be
cited for nonconpliance with the rules of the road, whether
licensed or not. She said these things would not change if the
bill passes.

Nunber 464

M5. MARSHBURN said she had a bit of hesitation with sone of the
| anguage in the proposed CS, specifically with [lines 5-6],
removing "VEH CULAR WAY OR AREA, OR OTHER PUBLI C PROPERTY IN
TH' S STATE". She said this l|anguage m ght open the overall
driver licensing law to weakeni ng. She said renoving that
| anguage might lend itself to a situation in which a citation
for a violation in a "Sears parking lot" or on public property
woul d not be held up in court because a driver's |icense was not
required.

Nunber 447

M5. MARSHBURN said she would like the opportunity for |ega
staff to look at the proposed CS because she had sone
reservations about it. She said the bill itself - before the
proposed CS - was a "cleaner way" to deal with the situation.
She said the original bill would sinply exenpt off-road vehicles
from the driver Ilicensing |aw. She asked that all off-road
vehicles be treated consistently, if that was the route to be
taken by the commttee.

Number 436

M5. MARSHBURN brought up the issue of off-road safety education.
She characterized it as a very valid issue and called for its
di scussi on and consideration. She said a nunber of states do
not regulate or |icense snowrachi nes. Sonme states require a
driver's license, but no state requires a "snowmbile |icense."
She said sone states have safety education prograns for young

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- February 21, 2002



operators of snowrachines. She said that safety education m ght
be a topic worthy of nore information and discussion "away from
this bill."

Number 412
MARK W LKE, Treasurer, Juneau Snownobile Cub, testified before

the committee. He had his son Dexter with him He told the
committee that his son had been snowrachining since he was 11

and that he was always very safe. M. WIke said that snow
machining allows him to share a great deal with his son. It
allows them to do sonething together in the outdoors. He said
the bill would allow them do enjoy their pastine |egally.

MR. WLKE said that he agreed that the safety issue was a big
problem in the state. He said that too nany people are being
killed - nostly by aval anches. He proposed raising the
snownobi l e registration fees by $10 and using that nmoney to fund
a conprehensive snownmbile safety and aval anche education
pr ogram He suggested that the nonies could be transferred to
the Division of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation so that it could
hire a full-time snowrachine safety person. He said nost
snowrachine users in the state that he had talked to are in
support of such a fee.

Number 381

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked if he wuld like to see the
education programas a voluntary or mandatory one.

MR WLKE said that the thinking anong snowrobilers is it
probably should be voluntary. He said that for young children,
however education shoul d be mandatory.

Nunmber 364

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked M. WIlke how he would inplenent
such a nmandatory program in rural Al aska. He said the safety
concerns are legitimate and should be addressed, but he added
that this is not a safety bill.

MR. W LKE said he believed the program should be carried out in
the school s. He gave the exanple of hunter safety education
program he went through as a youth in O egon.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked M. Wl ke if he thought it could be
done without making it nandatory.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -15- February 21, 2002



MR WLKE said that he would like to see it nandatory because
snowrachi nes are taking a great deal of "negative press.” He
said making it mandatory mght reduce sonme of the pressure on
snowrachi ne users.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH sai d he woul d support a nandatory program
for "sports people.”

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK told the commttee about a panphlet offered
by the state, "Conmobn Sense About Snownobiling," and said that
it was available at State Trooper posts throughout the state.
She said that snowmachine manufacturers also provide safety
i nformation. She said snowrachining is undergoing a period of
i ncreased popularity throughout the state. She said that there
are many uses for snowrachi nes throughout the state including
racing, sport use, pleasure and recreation, and transportation

She agreed with Representative Kookesh and said that this is an
issue of law. She said the bill should be concerned wth making
sure that people are not breaking the |[|aw She suggest ed
dealing with safety issues at another tinme with a different
pi ece of | egislation.

MR. W LKE said he supports the bill very much
Nunmber 299

JIM STRATTON, Di rector, Division of Parks and  CQutdoor
Recreation, Departnent of Natural Resources, testified before
the conmttee. He said the division is interested in the
educati onal opportunities brought forward by the |egislation.
He said the division instituted a program called the Snownobile
Trails Advisory Committee (SnoTRAC) - of which M. Wlke is a
menber - from the nonies that were taken from the fee
Representative Masek had talked about earlier. He said one
thing that cane from the "DOI Wnter Transportation Study" was
other rules and regul ations. He said that the departnent asked
if the SnoTRAC board would | ook at all of those issues and find
out where snowrachi ne users stood on them He said education
was a big issue in that regard.

Nunber 280
MR. STRATTON said that whether it is mandatory versus voluntary,
age requirenents, and urban-versus-rural regulations are al

things that nmust be grappled with by the SnoTRAC board. He said
the division is waiting for that process to bring sone consensus

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- February 21, 2002



from the snowrobile community statewi de, and that the division
would play a role in delivering an education program He said
there are great education progranms for snowrachine wuse in
exi stence at the present tine. He gave the exanple of the
Fai rbanks Police Departnment's program that is delivered through
the school system He said he envisions the departnent's role
as being the "maypole" around which good ideas can be shared
with the rest of the state

Nunber 257

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK asked M. Stratton if he supported the
proposed CS.

MR. STRATTON said that he had no problemwith the original bill
but said he had sone reservations about the |anguage in the

proposed CS. He said specifying that soneone does not need a
driver's license to operate an off-highway vehicle is a cleaner
way to approach the problem but he said there would still be

concerns about the under-16 riders.

Nunber 228

DOUG McBRIDE testified via tel econference. He said he is an
assi stant scoutmaster for a Boy Scout troop in Eagle River. He
said a large part of his scout program is teaching responsible
use of the outdoors. Wthin this is snowrachi ning. He said
that his group takes trips on snowrachines with an age limt of
13 or older. Al involved in the trip - both adults and scouts

- are required to attend a safety training course at Fort
Ri char dson

MR MBRIDE said that he was in the process of planning this
year's trip when the licensing requirenent cane to |ight. Thi s
year, those scouts wthout a driver's license wll not be
allowed to go. He said the licensing requirenent is needlessly
restricting opportunities. He said he was in strong support of
the bill as well as issue-specific solutions, such as training.

Nunber 162
REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to report CSHB 397, version 22-

LS1448\C, Ford, 2/12/02, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons and a zero fiscal note. He said that

there had been a |lot of good dialogue about the bill. He said
he did not feel that many of the safety issues should be
addressed by the bill, and holding the bill up to make it

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- February 21, 2002



resolve sonme of them would be wong. He said the bill was
i ntended to "nmake people legal."

Nunmber 142

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK referred to line 5, page 1 of the proposed
CS, where the conmttee had changed "hi ghway" to "roadway”. She
asked what woul d happen if "roadway" were put in and "vehicul ar
way or area" were kept in.

Nunmber 125

MR. KRI EBER said he thought it a great idea and said it would
serve to address many of DW' s concerns. He said the public
property issue was the driving force behind the proposed CS and
that it would still be deleted fromthe |anguage.

Nunmber 119

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI wi thdrew his notion to nove the proposed
CS out of committee.

Number 111

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK made a notion to nove Anmendnent 2, on lines
5-6, to renove the two [brackets] and add back into the bill
"vehicul ar way or area, or other public property in this state".

CHAIR KOHRI NG asked if it was Representative Masek's intent to
extract "vehicular way or area" and not the entire portion.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said that "or other public property in this
state" could be left out.

MR. KRIEBER said the cormittee was "doing double negatives,"” and
that he wanted to nake it clear that "we are exenpting the need
for a driver's license requirenent from public property.” He
clarified that Amendnent 2 would renpove the bracket on line 5
after "roadway" - Anmendnent 1 - which would then |eave
"vehicular way or area" and then place a bracket on line six
after the comma following the word "area". Del eted out of the
existing law woul d be "or other public property in this state".

Nunmber 054

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- February 21, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI expressed his <concern that all other
vehi cl es be included "except for cars and et cetera, et cetera.”

MR. KRIEBER said that the definition of notor vehicle includes
all of the things Representative Scal zi had di scussed.

Nunber 047

CHAIR KOHRING asked if there were any objections to the
anendnent, there being no objection, Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Nunber 041

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to report CSHB 397, version 22-
LS1448\C, Ford, 2/12/02, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons and a zero fiscal note.

There being no objection, CSHB 397(TRA) was noved out of the
House Transportation Standing Committee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:45
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- February 21, 2002



